SOUTHWEST KINGS GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY

944 Whitley Avenue, Suite E, Corcoran, CA 93212
559-762-7240 www.swkgsa.org

AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
December 3, 2021
1:00 pm
944 Whitley Avenue, 2™ Floor Boardroom
Corcoran, CA 93212

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83485404539?pwd=czRLOFFEYOhDRDhEM2Q0cDMOUy91dz09
Meeting ID: 834 8540 4539
Passcode: 566908
Dial in: +1 669 900 9128

The public may participate in the meeting as otherwise permitted under the Brown Act by calling into the
telephone number above. Any member of the public may address the SWKGSA Board of Directors concerning
any item on the agenda before or during its consideration of that matter, as appropriate.

CALL TO ORDER 1:00 pm

ROLL CALL Mark Grewal, Vice Chairman
Kimberly Brown, Secretary/Treasurer
Jim Wilson
Ceil Howe III
John Vidovich

Recognition and swearing-in of John Vidovich to Southwest Kings GSA Board of Directors

PUBLIC COMMENT

The Board of Directors welcomes participation in Board meetings. The public may address matters under the jurisdiction of the Board that have
not been posted in the Agenda. However, California Law prohibits the Board from taking action on any matter that is not on the posted Agenda
unless the Board determines that it is an emergency or one of the other situations specified in Government Code section 54954.2, The public
will be given the opportunity to address the Board on any item on the Agenda at this time or before the Board's consideration of that item. If
members of the public desire to address the Board relative to a particular Agenda item at the time it is to be considered, they should so notify
the Chairman of the Board at this time. The Chairman may limit the total amount of time allocated for public testimony on particular issues for
each individual speaker.

POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS
(Any Board member who has a potential conflict of interest may now identify the item and recuse him/herself from
discussing and voting on the matter,) [FPPC § 87105.]




CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting held on October 1, 2021.
2. Warrants and Finances (09/23/2021 - 11/15/2021).
3. Treasurer's Report.

ACTION CALENDAR

4. Board to Consider, Review, and/or Action to Appoint a Director Representative from
Southwest Kings GSA to the JPIA Board of Directors.

a. Report by Executive Director

b. Discussion

¢. Public Comments / Questions

d. If desired, motion to appoint a representative with a term through November 2023

5. Consider for approval submitting a letter of Support for Tulare Lake Subbasin Grant
Application.

a. Report by Executive Director

b. Discussion

¢. Public Comments / Questions

d. If desired, motion to authorize the Executive Director to issue the letter of support

6. Review and consider approval of AB361 to continue to conduct Board meetings via Zoom
a. Report by Executive Director
b. Discussion
¢. Public Comments/Questions
d. If desired, motion to approve meetings to be held via teleconference

COMMUNICATIONS/DISCUSSION ITEMS

7. Director’'s Reports/Comments/Suggestions

8. Reports of General Interest
a. California Strategies Update — David Armanasco and Rusty Areias
b. Tulare Lake Subbasin Update — Amer Hussain
i. Annual Report

ii. SGM Grant Program 2021 GL and PSP comment letter

iii. State Water Resources Control Board comment letter
¢. Legal Counsel Update — Jason Howard
d. Other updates, as appropriate

ADJOURNMENT

9. Adjourn to the next Regular Board Meeting, scheduled for Friday, February 4, 2022 at
1:00 pm, at 944 Whitley Avenue, Corcoran, or as otherwise directed by the Board.



% Items on the Agenda may be taken in any order.

% Action may be taken on any item listed on the Agenda.

% Writings relating to open session Agenda items that are distributed to members of the Board of Directors will
be available for inspection at the Authority office, excluding writings that are not public records or are exempt
from disclosure under the California Public Records Acts.

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990: Under this act, a qualifying person may request that the Authority
provide a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to participate in any public meeting of the
Authority. Such assistance includes alternative formats for the agendas and agenda packets used for any public
meetings of the Authority. Requests for assistance shall be made in person, via telephone, or in written form to the
SOUTHWEST KINGS GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY Office at 944 Whitley Avenue, Suite E, Corcoran,
CA 93212 (559) 762-7240. Requests must be received at least 48 hours prior to a scheduled public meeting.



SOUTHWEST KINGS GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY
AGENCY
REGULAR BOARD MEETING

MINUTES
October 1, 2021

The Board of Directors of the Southwest Kings Groundwater Sustainability Agency met in the second-
floor conference room, 944 Whitley Avenue, Corcoran, California, on Friday, October 1, 2021, at the
hour of 1:00 p.m. The meeting was available via Zoom for interested parties.

Vice Chair Grewal presided and Executive Director Jacksonkept the minutes.

DIRECTORS PRESENT: Mark Grewal
Kim Brown
Jim Wilson
Bernard Puget

DIRECTORS ABSENT:

OTHERS PRESENT: Deanna Jackson, Executive Director
Staci Wilkins, Executive Assistant
Jason Howard, McCormick Barstow
Amer Hussain, Geosyntec
Kiti Campbell, Westlands Water District
Cody Tolbert, Chevron
Mike Cuttone, Cuttone & Mastro
Rusty Areias, California Strategies
David Armanasco, California Strategies
Scott Hamilton, Water Blueprint
Ceil W. Howe III
Zac Just, Westlands Water District

Vice Chair Grewal called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.

PUBLIC COMMENT
No public comment

CONSENT CALENDAR (Agenda items 1 - 3)

Upon the motion of Director Brown and seconded by Director Wilson, the Consent Calendar
consisting of Minutes of the August 6, 2021 Regular Board Meeting, Warrants and Finances dated
between 07/30/2021 and 09/23/2021, and the Treasurer's Report was approved as presented by
the following roli call vote:

1|Page



Brown

Wilson

Grewal

Puget

Aye

Aye

Aye

Aye

ACTION CALENDAR

4.

Review and consider the appointment of an individual to represent the “White Areas”. After
some discussion, Director Brown motioned to appoint Ceil W. Howe III to the vacant position
with a term through November 2023, which was seconded by Director Puget. The Directors
voted as follows:

Wilson
Aye

Brown
Aye

Grewal
Aye

Puget
Aye

Review the status of the Board officers. With the Chair position open, discussion centered around
whether new officers should be elected at this time or if they should remain as is until the first
meeting in 2022. Director Brown motioned to keep the officers as they are with the Vice Chair
leading the meetings through the end of 2021 which was seconded by Director Puget. The
Directors voted as follows:

Brown Wilson Puget Howe Grewal

Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye

Consider for approval the Southwest Kings GSA Financial Statements and Independent Auditor’s
report for the year ended December 31, 2020. Mike Cuttone presented the information and
answered all questions. Director Brown motioned to approve the audit report as presented which
was seconded by Director Howe. The Directors voted as follows:

Brown Wilson Puget Howe Grewal

Aye"® Aye Aye Aye Aye

Review and consider for approval expenditure for Water Blueprint of the San Joaquin Valley.
Scott Hamilton presented information on the work that they are doing and its importance. The
invoice presented was for half due since Dudley Ridge Water District had already paid the
remaining $7,500. Director Brown motioned to approve the invoice for $7,500 which was
seconded by Director Puget. The Directors voted as follows:

Brown Wilson Puget Howe Grewal

Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye

8.

Consider for approval AB361 in regards to continuing to offer Board meetings via Zoom in
addition to being in person. General Counsel Howard explained that the previous Executive
Order had expired on September 30 with AB361 taking its place on October 1. The legislature
understands the importance of online meetings and established guidelines to continue holding
meetings as long as certain conditions are met. Director Brown motioned to continue with the

2jPage



meeting format as it stands which was seconded by Director Wilson. The Directors voted as

follows:
Brown Wilson Puget Howe Grewal
Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye

COMMUNICATIONS/DISCUSSION ITEMS

10.

Director’s Reports/Comments/Suggestion

None

Reports of General Interest

a)

b)

California Strategies — Rusty Areias and David Armanasco

There was a follow-up meeting with Secretary Crowfoot regarding the lack of action from
the State on items that have been discussed in Sacramento. The Secretary’s response is
that it has been a busy time at the Capital with the drought, wildfires and recall election to
contend with. The Hurtado bill (SB559) has been delayed until January because there was
an attempt to add language to the bill that-Senator Hurtado disapproved of. It will
hopefully be discussed next year with proposed funding of one-half Federal and one-half
State monies. The matrix for funding opportunities within the Tri-County area has been
given to Executive Director Jackson and is currently being reviewed. Looking for grant
opportunities through the State Board, DWR and Parks Department.

Tulare Lake Subbasin Update — Deanna Jackson / Amer Hussain

« The comments for the Tulare Lake Subbasin GSP have not yet been received. It has been

noted that there will\be batches of comments coming out and that the Tulare Lake
comments may come in one of the earlier batches since there is only one GSP amongst the
GSAs. When responses are submitted, DWR will be looking for strikeouts and
additions/changes added to the current document so that the updates can easily be seen.
Each GSA Board will have the responsibility of reviewing and voting to approve all GSP
revisions.

e The 2022 Annual Report due in April has already been started with data gathering. The
expected first draft will be in February for review and comments returned by March.

e The Tulare Lake Subbasin is currently in discussion with consultants for model updates.

» Tolling agreement is still in place with Westlands Water District.

e There are some drought relief grants in draft form at this time for critically over-drafted
basins. Funds could be in the amount of $200 million. If it's determined that there is a
project that benefits the subbasin, the Board may be asked to write a letter of support.

* Round 2 Proposition 68 funds ($70 million) will be available again after the start of 2022.
This is a competitive grant opportunity with only a few projects chosen for each subbasin
submission.

3|Page



C) Legal Counsel Report - Jason Howard
None

d) Other updates, as appropriate
Director Brown and Director Grewal were reminded to have their respective Boards take

action to reaffirm their status on the Board as their terms expire in November. It was noted
that Reclamation District #761 needs to name an alternate Director to the Board.

ADJOURNMENT

11. There being no further business to come before the Board on the occasion of October 1, 2021,
meeting, Vice Chair Grewal adjourned the meeting at 2:02 pm until the next Regular Meeting on
December 3, 2021, at 944 Whitley Avenue, Corcoran, oras otherwise directed by the Board.

Attest:

Kim Brown, Secretary

Mark Grewal, Vice Chair

4|Page



Southwest Kings Groundwater Sustainability Agency

Check Detail
September 23 - November 15, 2021

DATE TRANSACTION TYPE

NUM

NAME

MEMO/DESCRIPTION

CLR AMOUNT

Bill.com Money Qut Clearing

10/01/2021 Bill Payment (Check) Tri County Water Authority Multiple invoices (details on stub) -21,000.00
-21,000.00
10/01/2021 Bill Payment (Check) Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group Inv #87196 -49.00
-49.00
10/01/2021 Bill Payment (Check) California Strategies and Advocacy, LLC Inv #0921114 -3,600.00
-3,600.00
10/01/2021 Bill Payment (Check) M. Green and Company, LLP Inv #154099 -300.00
-300.00
10/21/2021 Bill Payment (Check) Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group Inv #86072 -88.20
-88.20
10/21/2021 Bill Payment (Check) Cuttone & Mastro Inv #4609 -4,100.00
-4,100.00
10/21/2021  Bill Payment (Check) McCormick Barstow LLP Inv #2096397 -300.00
-300.00
10/21/2021  Bill Payment (Check) Geosyntec Consultants, Inc. Inv #32447522 -998.07
-998.07
10/21/2021 Bill Payment {Check) Water Blueprint for the SJV Inv #1029 -7,500.00
-7,500.00
10/21/2021 Bill Payment (Check) ACWA/Joint Powers Insurance Authority Inv #10/18/2021 -1,350.00
-1,350.00
10/21/2021 Bill Payment (Check) Baker Manock & Jensen PC Inv #462441 -181.00
-181.00
11/02/2021 Bill Payment (Check) Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group Inv #87814 -78.40
-78.40
11/02/2021 Bill Payment (Check) California Strategies and Advocacy, LLC Inv #1021113 -3,600.00
-3,600.00
11/15/2021 Bill Payment (Check) McCormick Barstow LLP Inv #2098900 -540.00
-540.00

Suncrest Bank
10/05/2021 Expense Suncrest Bank R -16.00
wire fee 15.00
10/05/2021 Expense Suncrest Bank R -25.00
domestic wire fee 25.00
10/06/2021 Expense Suncrest Bank R -25.00
domestic wire fee 25.00
10/12/2021  Check 5000 R -98.00
Fee for custom report of parcels within the GSA 98.00

12



Southwest Kings Groundwater Sustainability Agency

Check Detail
September 23 - November 15, 2021

Note
No assurance is provided on these financial statements.

2/2



Southwest Kings Groundwater Sustainability Agency

Budget vs. Actuals: FY_2021 - FY21 P&L
January - October, 2021

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET % OF BUDGET
Income
401 Benefit Assessment 180,372.76 182,362.00 -1,989.24 98.91 %
Total Income $180,372.76  $182,362.00 $-1,989.24 98.91 %
GROSS PROFIT $180,372.76 $182,362.00 $-1,989.24 98.91 %
Expenses
502 Accounting 4,887.50 7,750.00 -2,862.50 63.06 %
503 Legal 1,003.50 18,000.00 -16,996.50 5.58 %
505 Insurance 2,215.00 3,000.00 -785.00 73.83 %
506 Website 749.06 2,000.00 -1,250.94 37.45%
507 Audit 4,100.00 5,000.00 -900.00 82.00 %
520 GSP
520-1 Budget Overrun 25,000.00 -25,000.00
520-2 Annual Report 8,095.14 15,000.00 -6,904.86 53.97 %
520-3 Monitoring/DMS 7,743.16 20,000.00 -12,256.84 38.72%
520-4 Grant Applications/Admin 15,000.00 -15,000.00
Total 520 GSP 15,838.30 75,000.00 -59,161.70 21.12%
530 Dues 506.48 506.48
540 Contingency 7,500.00 36,000.00 -28,500.00 20.83 %
580 Outside Services
580.1 Consulting 36,000.00 43,200.00 -7,200.00 83.33 %
580.2 Engineering 3,737.87 3,737.87
580.3 Management Fees 63,000.00 84,000.00 -21,000.00 75.00 %
Total 580 Outside Services 102,737.87 127,200.00 -24,462.13 80.77 %
590 Other 851.83 851.83
Total Expenses $140,389.54 $273,950.00 $ -133,560.46 51.25%
NET OPERATING INCOME -  $39,083.22  $-91,588.00 $131,571.22 T 4366%
Other Income
490 Interest 1,197.91 4,000.00 -2,802.09 29.95 %
495 Miscellaneous 67,083.71 67,083.71
Total Other income '$68,281.62 $4,000.00 $64,281.62 1,707.04 %
NET OTHER INCOME $68,281.62 $4,000.00 $64,281.62 1,707.04 %
NET INCOME $108,264.84 $ -87,568.00 $195,852.84 -123.61 %
Note

No assurance is provided on these financial statements.

n



Southwest Kings Groundwater Sustainability Agency

Statement of Net Assets
As of October 31, 2021

AS OF OCT 31, 2021 AS OF OCT 31, 2020 (PY) CHANGE
ASSETS
Current Assets
Bank Accounts
101 BofA Checking 0.00 76,190.32 -76,190.32
102 LAIF 351,204.45 299,973.08 51,231.37
Suncrest Bank 89,668.53 89,668.53
Total Bank Accounts $440,872.98 $376,163.40 $64,709.58
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable 3,664.21 3,927.26 -263.05
Total Accounts Receivable $3,664.21 $3,927.26 $-263.05
Total Current Assets $444,537.19 $380,090.66 $64,446.53
TOTAL ASSETS $444,537.19 $380,000.66  $64,446.53
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable 3,678.40 9,350.59 -5,672.19
Total Accounts Payable $3,678.40 $9,350.59 $-5,672.19
Total Current Liabilities o  $3,678.40 $9,350.59 $-5,672.19
Total Liabilities $3,678.40 $9,350.59 - $-5,672.19
Equity
Retained Earnings 332,593.95 481,490.56 -148,896.61
Net income 108,264.84 -110,750.49 219,015.33
Total Equity $440,858.79 $370,740.07 $70,118.72
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $444 537.19 $380,090.66 $64,446.53
Note

No assurance is provided on these financial statements.

Accrual Basis

1n



GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY .

MID-KINGS RIVER

[piicoGsa

‘ South Fork Kings
- Groundwater Sustainability Agency

TRI-COUNTY

WATER AUTHORITY

Southwest Kings
Groundwater Sustainability Agency

November 29, 2021

Submitted via email: SGMP/@water.ca.zov

Ms. Kelley List, PG

Financial Assistance Division

California Department of Water Resources
PO Box 942836

Sacramento, CA 95814

Subject: SGM Grant Program 2021 GL and PSP Comment Letter

Dear Ms. List:

The Tulare Lake Subbasin appreciates the opportunity to submit our comments on the draft SGM
Grant Program’s SGMA Implementation Proposal Solicitation Package and Guidelines. We
would like to thank California Department of Water Resources (DWR or Department) staff for
their efforts in putting together the solicitation package. We understand the challenges in trying to
comply with the 2021 Budget Act along with Proposition 68. In addition, it is appreciated that
DWR staff made themselves available to answer questions and address concerns.

We’ve had a chance to review the draft documents and have prepared this letter summarizing our
comments. While there are some items in the draft PSP that we disagree with and would like to
see modified, there are also others that we support and encourage the Department to keep those in
the final PSP.

Comment 1: Eligible projects under San Joaquin Valley (SJV) appropriated funds

While we understand that the requirements of the SJV appropriated funds are listed in the Budget
Act, we request that DWR apply an appropriate interpretation of the projects eligible for these
funds. It was clearly the intent of the Budget Act to direct monies to the SJV subbasins as that area



Ms. Kelley List
November 29, 2021
Page 2

will be greatly impacted by SGMA requirements. As stated in the Budget Act, “projects should
complement efforts of a local groundwater sustainability plan.”

Each subbasin has unique conditions that are best understood by the local agencies. The
Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) fundamentally understand the importance of
capturing floodwaters when available, have member agencies with the water rights to do so, and
how best to utilize that resource. As such, it is the Tulare Lake Subbasin GSAs view that any
projects that capture flood waters for recharge or habitat meet the intent of the Budget Act and
should be considered eligible for funding.

Lastly, given the September 2022 deadline for SJV Critically Overdrafted (COD) Basin fund
allocation, and the use-it-or-lose-it requirements in the Budget Act for those funds, it is the hope
of the Tulare Lake Subbasin GSAs that DWR makes as much of these funds available as possible.
It would be a significant loss if any of these funds could not be put to use, especially if there were
eligible projects in that area that were eligible for funding.

Comment 2: Clarify the requirement for eligible projects to be listed in the GSP or approved
Alternative.

As the Groundwater Sustainability Plans (GSPs) were prepared more than two years ago,
additional information has been developed since then. Many of the subbasins, including the Tulare
Lake, have numerous new projects that are planned as part of GSP implementation. To give the
subbasins the most flexibility in complying with these requirements, we request that DWR change
the requirement for eligible to projects to include 1) those listed in GSP, annual reports, and
websites or 2) are consistent with the GSP.

Comment 3: Eligible projects must include conjunctive use projects

Conjunctive use (also know as In-Lieu Recharge) is the use of surface water (especially reregulated
or temporarily stored floodwaters) instead of pumping groundwater. The Tulare Lake Subbasin,
which includes the historic Tulare Lake area, has for decades captured floodwaters and later
utilized that water in-lieu of pumping groundwater. In the Tulare Lake area, it is not unusual, after
a flood year, for groundwater pumps to be off for two years. Conjunctive use projects can be just
as effective as direct recharge projects in achieving groundwater sustainability. The Tulare Lake



Ms. Kelley List
November 29, 2021
Page 3

Subbasin requests clarification that conjunctive use projects will be available for funding as
recharge occurs when pumps are turned off while captured floodwaters are used.

Comment 4: Eligible cost timeframe

Currently it appears that the eligible funding timeframe is described as starting when a grant
agreement is formalized with DWR and extends through the end of June 2025. We would
recommend that DWR make the eligible funding timeframe start with the passage of the Budget
Act (implementing legislation).

Comment 5: Provisions in the PSP that we support
While we support numerous provisions in the PSP, a few that we particularly support include:

e The Departments commitment to work through GSAs or local agencies to identify the top
priority efforts in a subbasin that parties can support and which develops benefits consistent
with the State’s objective.

e The expansive and not exclusive list of project activities that are eligible for funding. We
appreciate the Department being open to allowing the Subbasins to determine how to best
meet their varied needs. As previously noted, the Tulare Lake Subbasin seeks clarification
that, as was allowed in the prior Proposition 68 funding, the list of projects have been listed
on GSA public websites will be eligible.

e We also appreciate the schedule in which the funding will be made available. We have
several projects that are ready to start once the funding is secured. While the January 31
deadline for submittal of the application is challenging, we feel that having the funds
available by May 2022 is critical.



Ms. Kelley List
November 29, 2021
Page 4

Closing

The Tulare Lake Subbasin appreciates the opportunity to present our comments and provide DWR
with our recommendations for changes on draft PSP and Guidelines. We look forward to working
with DWR on the continued implementation of our GSP.

Sincerely,

Deanna Jackson

Deanna Jackson
Executive Director, TCWA and
SWKGSA

Dennis Mills

Dennis Mills, PE
General Manager, MKR GSA

Jeof Wyrick
Chairman, El Rico GSA
Charlotte Gallock

Charlotte Gallock
Executive Director, SFKGSA

Signature: Zdla Signature:
Dennis Mills (Nov 29, 2021 08:45 PST} Deanna Jacksen [Nov 29, 2021 09:00 PST}
Email: dennis.kingscwd@outlook.com Email: djackson@tcwater.org
signature: Chariotte Gallogk Signature:

Charlotte Gallock (Nov 29, 2021 09:08 PST)
Email: cgallock@kred.org Email: jwyrick@jgboswell.com



Ms. Kelley List
November 29, 2021
Page 4

Closing

The Tulare Lake Subbasin appreciates the opportunity to present our comments and provide DWR
with our recommendations for changes on draft PSP and Guidelines. We look forward to working
with DWR on the continued implementation of our GSP.

Sincerely,

Deanna Jackson
Executive Director, TCWA and
SWKGSA

Dennis Mills, PE
General Manager, MKR GSA

Jeof Wyrick
Chairman, El Rico GSA

Charlotte Gallock
Executive Director, SFKGSA



N
19 A Gavin Newsom
Sl GOvERNOR
cALIPORNIA JAHED BLUMENFELD
SECRETARY FOR

Q)
Water Boards b ENVIHONMENTAL PROTECTION

State Water Resources Control Board

August 23, 2021

Craig Altare

Supervising Engineering Geologist
Sustainable Groundwater Management Office
Department of Water Resources
craig.altare@water.ca.gov

TULARE LAKE GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY PLAN, GROUNDWATER
SUBBASIN NO. 5-022.12

The State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) staff are providing these
comments in support of the Department of Water Resources’ (DWR) review of the
Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) for the Tulare Lake Groundwater Subbasin
(subbasin).

Our comments on the GSP focus on the following areas:

e Water Budget

e Groundwater Levels and Potential Drinking Water Impacts
e Groundwater Quality

¢ Land Subsidence

¢ Depletions of Interconnected Surface Water

e Projects and Management Actions

e Projects Reliant on New or Amended Water Rights

e Engagement

Water Budget

1. Based on the modeling results presented in the GSP, it appears that GSP projects
and management actions will not achieve sustainable groundwater management
conditions by 2040. While the overall decline in groundwater levels is projected to
slow over time with projects, it appears that the GSP allows for continuing
groundwater level declines past the year 2040 when the subbasin is required to
reach sustainability. The GSP also appears to allow for continued long-term loss of
groundwater storage and subsidence. In many of the projected groundwater level

E. Joaquin Esquiver, cuair | EILEEN SOBECK, EXEGUTIVE DIREGTOR

1001 | Street, Sacramento, CA 956814 | Mailing Address: P.O, Box 100, Sacramento, CA 85812-0100 | www.waterboards.ca.gov



Craig Altare -2- August 23, 2021

trend lines for the area covered by each groundwater sustainability agency (GSA)
(Figures 4-2 through 4-7), levels do not stabilize with time, but instead decline more
slowly, remaining above the MTs through 2070. As indicated in the discussion of
the modeling results, it appears that the GSP justifies continued overdraft by
proposing “sustainable levels” of overdraft, rather than halting overdraft and further
concludes that “the continued reduction in groundwater storage is also sustainable”
and that “the continued subsidence is also sustainabie” (Appendix D, p. 44). State
Water Board staff finds that the GSP’s conclusion that overdraft is sustainable is not
consistent with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA), and further
recommends that the GSP develop projects and management actions that achieve
measurable objectives (MOs) within the implementation period.

Groundwater Levels and Potential Drinking Water Impacts

2. The GSP does not describe how water levels at or near the MOs or minimum
thresholds (MTs) may impact domestic wells, public water systems, other beneficial
users, or land use and property interests, nor does it describe how these interests
were considered in setting the MOs and MTs. The GSP’s discussion of its
sustainable management criteria (SMC) should include a description of how
groundwater conditions at or near MTs may affect beneficial uses and users of
water and whether those effects do or do not constitute an undesirable result. MOs
for year 2040 groundwater levels were set by assuming 15 years of “business as
usual” groundwater declines.! The MTs were then set as one standard deviation
from the average forecasted water level in July 2035 or 50 feet, whichever was
greater, below the MOs. A potentially significant number of domestic wells may be
impacted if groundwater elevations decline to the MOs or MTs.

Estimates of wells that may be affected at groundwater elevation MOs and MTs in
Central Valley GSPs are publicly available.? These technical resources are
available for consideration by the GSAs. State Water Board staff conducted its own
analysis for the subbasin by comparing the depths of wells® with well completion
reports in DWR'’s Online System for Well Completion Reports (OSWCR) database
to the MOs and MTs presented in the GSP for the subbasin. This analysis excluded

1 GSAs developed MOs by projecting groundwater levels expected in 2035, assuming
historical water use and surface water deliveries, “normal” hydrology, and no projects or
management actions.

2 See reports and analyses by Pauloo, R., Bostic, D., Monaco, A. and Hammond, K.,
The Water Foundation and EKI; and UC Davis Center for Regional Change

3 Where available, staff used the bottom of the well screen to represent well depth;
otherwise, staff used the bottom of the well.




Craig Altare -3- August 23, 2021

wells that were estimated to have already been dry in 2015.4 Given uncertainties in
the OSWCR data, staff present a range of values based on domestic and public
water system well records with location and depth information. The lower bounds
represent wells installed after 19915 and the upper bounds represent all wells
regardless of installation date. The results of this analysis are summarized below.

e Ofthe 727 to 1,327 domestic wells, 33 to 98 (5% to 7%) may go dry at MOs
and 249 to 473 (34% to 36%) may go dry at MTs.

o Of the 20 to 35 public water system wells, one may go dry at MOs and at
MTs.

State Water Board staff strongly recommends that the GSAs conduct an
independent analysis of the potential impacts of proposed MOs and MTs and
projected groundwater management outcomes on active domestic wells and public
water supply wells, update the GSP with this information, and consider how those
effects compare with the GSAs’ definition of an undesirable result related to
declining groundwater levels. Additionally, the GSAs should estimate and describe
the population served by the wells in the subbasin which are not protected at MTs.
In order to ensure that all necessary and relevant information is considered in the
GSP, the GSAs should engage domestic well users, public water systems and state
small systems, and other stakeholders as part of both the analysis and the
discussion of what constitutes an undesirable result.

3. If a reasonable conclusion, drawn from the GSAs’ evaluation and projections
including the analysis described in #2, is that the proposed allowable decline in
groundwater levels could constitute a significant and unreasonable depletion of
supply, the GSAs should adjust MTs (and amend the analysis described in #2) or
otherwise mitigate for impacts to wells. For mitigation, the GSAs could develop and
implement a well mitigation plan that would lessen the significance of the impact by
replacing or repairing domestic or drinking water system wells impacted by
groundwater level declines. The GSAs could also support expansion of public water
system boundaries to private well communities or consolidation of smaller drinking
water systems dependent on at-risk wells with larger public water systems. This
would invoive identifying vulnerabie areas where consolidation or extension of
service is feasible. Consolidation efforts may include: (1) providing financial
assistance, particularly for low-cost intertie projects that are adjacent to larger
systems, (2) working with County Planning agencies to ensure that communities

4 Detailed methodology available upon request.
5 See discussion of well retirement age on page 12 of the UC Davis Center for Regional
Change’s analysis.




Craig Altare -4 - August 23, 2021

served by at-risk wells are annexed into the service areas of larger water systems to
limit barriers to future interties, and (3) facilitating outreach and introductions
between small water systems and owners of domestic wells and larger water
systems to assist in developing future partnerships.

4. While the GSP describes well permitting processes in each applicable county, and
mentions that “Kings County Building Division will be engaged to modify the water
well ordinance (Ordinance No. 587) to coordinate well permitting with the GSP”
(Section 7.2.2.4), it lacks specific information regarding whether or how the GSAs
will evaluate new permits, address possible impacts from new permits, or work with
the county to address concerns. State Water Board staff recommends that GSAs
work with county governments to encourage alignment between the GSP and
county well permitting programs. As encouraged by SGMA, GSAs should request
counties forward permit requests for new wells, for enlarging of existing wells, or for
reactivation of abandoned wells. (Water Code, § 10726.4.) Shifting demand to sites
near existing wells may cause groundwater level declines and effects on beneficial
users of water in areas of the subbasin not well represented by an RMS. Increased
production from these wells may also make it more difficult for the GSAs to avoid
undesirable results and achieve sustainability within the implementation period.

Groundwater Quality

5. The GSP states that within the subbasin, “no correlation has been found between
water quality and groundwater levels” (Section 4.4.1.4, p. 4-21) and “groundwater
quality will not be significantly and unreasonably impacted by the implementation of
this GSP” (Section 4.3.4.4, p. 4-19). The GSP further states that if groundwater
quality degrades from current conditions (baseline) to exceeding regulatory
standards (MTs), the GSAs will evaluate whether the implementation of the GSP
caused the degradation.

Not all water quality impacts to groundwater must be addressed in the GSP, but
significant and unreasonable water quality degradation due to groundwater
conditions occurring throughout the subbasin, and that were not present prior to
January 1, 2015, must be addressed in the GSP. Both groundwater extraction and
the implementation of projects to achieve sustainability may cause impacts from
migration of contaminant plumes, changes in the concentration of contaminants due
to reduction in the volume of water stored in the subbasin, or release of harmful
naturally occurring constituents. The GSAs should particularly consider whether any
groundwater quality constituents in the subbasin may impact the State’s policy of
protecting the right of every human being to safe, clean, affordabie, and accessible
water adequate for human consumption, cooking, and sanitary purposes (Water
Code, §106.3). Coordination by the GSAs with agencies that oversee the



Craig Altare -5- August 23, 2021

remediation of existing groundwater contamination is highly recommended, both in
setting MTs and developing a plan of implementation.

Regarding the assertion that no causation or correlation can be drawn between
groundwater levels and groundwater quality: although this assertion could be
consistent with data currently available, the GSP should include a plan to revisit this
issue at regular intervals when more data are available. This future review will allow
the GSA to make decisions based on the data including the possibility of setting
MOs and MTs associated with groundwater quality as it relates to groundwater
levels. This is particularly important as it relates to drinking water quality, both of
domestic private wells and wells used by state small and public water systems.

6. The GSP should outline the process the GSAs would use to decide whether GSP
implementation caused or exacerbated an MT exceedance for water quality. In
addition, the GSP should provide the data supporting its conclusions, which will
allow reviewing regulatory bodies to consider how adequately the GSP addresses
undesirable results related to water quality degradation. The GSAs should also
coordinate and share the data with other local and regional groundwater monitoring
efforts.

7. The GSP should more explicitly define its MTs and MOs for degradation of
groundwater quality. The GSP includes maps, and the Basin Setting (Chapter 3)
includes descriptions of water quality impacts from total dissolved solids, arsenic,
nitrate and specific volatile organic compounds. The MOs are described as
degradation from current baseline and MTs as exceedances of regulatory
thresholds due to implementation of the GSP. The GSP notes that the GSAs will
rely on existing groundwater quality monitoring programs, and monitoring wells are
tabulated and mapped in the GSP. While it can be assumed that monitoring will
include constituents described in the Basin Setting and maps, the GSP should
explicitly state the constituents that will be tracked by the monitoring network as well
as include tables of the baseline concentrations (MOs) for each monitoring well and
regulatory threshold concentrations (MTs) for each constituent. The GSP should
also explain what it means to set MOs as “degradation beyond existing groundwater
conditions” (Section 4.4.1.4, p. 4-21).

8. While not discussed in the Basin Setting or maps, GSP implementation should also
include MOs, MTs, and monitoring for uranium and gross alpha radioactivity based
on their prevalence above their respective maximum contaminant levels in the
subbasin. Staff have attached maps from the State Water Board Groundwater
Ambient Monitoring and Assessment Program’s (GAMA) database (https://




Craig Altare -6- August 23, 2021

gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/) showing uranium and gross alpha
radioactivity impacts in subbasin groundwater (Figures 1 and 2 in Appendix).

In deciding which water quality constituents to consider when setting SMC, the
GSAs should consider the best available water quality information for the subbasin,
including data used to develop the hydrogeologic conceptual model, geochemistry
of geological formations (for the potential of mobilization of natural constituents),
and groundwater uses in the vicinity of the representative monitoring sites (RMS)
and the subbasin as a whole when determining which constituents to evaluate for
MTs. Different constituents may cause undesirable degradation of water quality in
different areas based on the purposes for which groundwater is beneficially used.

9. Please note that historical and recent water quality monitoring information from
public water systems can be accessed using the public version of the State Water
Board's Drinking Water Watch database at
https://sdwis.waterboards.ca.gov/PDWW/. The Drinking Water Watch database can
be queried by public water system name or system number (see #15 below).

Land Subsidence

10. The GSP’s discussion of subsidence ignores known, existing subsidence-related
problems in the subbasin, including problems identified by one of the subbasin’s
GSAs. The GSP includes subsidence as an undesirable result but only considers
subsidence impacts to the California Aqueduct, which is located along the western
boundary of the subbasin, to be significant and unreasonable (Section 4.2.1.3, p. 4-
8). This section of the California Aqueduct has experienced minimal subsidence and
is located away from areas of significant groundwater pumping. The GSP also
states that “while subsidence impacts to various facilities have been identified
throughout the subbasin, it currently doesn’t appear that the impacts are significant
and unreasonable” (Section 4.2.2.3, p. 4-11). The GSAs should expand their
analysis to include the following known subsidence-related impacts that are not
discussed within the GSP:

a) The area around the town of Corcoran, located within the subbasin, is known to
have experienced substantial subsidence over time, which has resulted in the
need to raise flood control levees.® Corcoran is located on the edge of the
Tulare Lake dry lakebed, which can flood in wet years.

b) The Southwest Kings GSA (SWKGSA), one of the GSAs in the subbasin,
reported in an April 29, 2020, public comment letter to DWR that lift stations

6 Nidever, Seth. “Fearing flood, Corcoran raises levee.” The Sentinel, 10 Mar. 2017.



Craig Altare -7- August 23, 2021

have been installed in some canals because of land subsidence. SWKGSA also
stated that most of their governing board and landowners have serious
concerns regarding the groundwater overdraft and land subsidence within the
subbasin and are concerned about the lack of clear management actions to
address subsidence in the GSP.

c) A study that focused on subsidence and water quality in the subbasin area
found that continued subsidence due to overdraft may result in increasing
groundwater arsenic concentrations over time by releasing high arsenic
containing pore water from compacting clay layers into the more transmissive
aquifer materials.”

Depletion of Interconnected Surface Water

11. The GSP does not adequately demonstrate that depletions of interconnected
surface water are not present in the subbasin. The GSP argues undesirable results
related to depletion of interconnected surface water are not occurring in the
subbasin and are not likely to occur. Since Tulare Lake was drained many years
ago, the GSP argues surface waters are disconnected from the regional aquifer.
However, first encountered groundwater, which is considered perched, is found
between 0 and 20-feet-deep in most of the subbasin. Furthermore, wetlands and
phreatophytic vegetation are present within and adjacent to the subbasin as
discussed in the GSP (Section 3.2.8.1, pp. 3-35 through 3-37). The GSP does not
include any analysis of the effects of continued overdraft on shallow groundwater
and potentially interconnected surface water, and consequently ignores
groundwater-dependent ecosystems. The GSP should provide additional
information and analysis to consider all environmental beneficial uses of
groundwater and to consider surface water and groundwater connectivity.

Projects and Management Actions

12. Descriptions of projects and management actions are too vague to understand
whether their implementation is feasible and likely to prevent undesirable results in
the subbasin, particularly in light of the informational deficiencies addressed above.
Projects and management actions include demand reduction (voluntary fallowing,
dry farming) and supply augmentation (groundwater recharge basins, surface
storage in ponds, canal/ditch improvements). If implemented, the GSP states that,
by 2040, demand reduction would save approximately 44,000 acre-feet per year
(AF/Y) and supply augmentation would add approximately 137,000 AF/Y.
Descriptions of projects and management actions are conceptual and do not

7 Smith, R., Knight, R., & Fendorf, S. (2018). Overpumping leads to California
groundwater arsenic threat. Nature Communications, 9(1), 2089.



Craig Altare -8- August 23, 2021

specify: the criteria that would trigger implementation (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 23,
§354.44, subd. (b)(1)(A)); a time-table for implementation (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 23,
§354.44, subd. (b)(4)); a description of how the GSAs plan to meet costs (Cal. Code
Regs., tit. 23, §354.44, subd. (b)(8)); or an explanation of the source and reliability
of the water on which the projects rely (§354.44, subd. (b)(6)). The GSP does not
include a clear commitment to implement the projects. The GSP states that project
“locations will be identified by each GSA and their respective partners within their
area as soon as the need arises and funding is available” (Section 6.3.1.1, p. 6-5).
State Water Board staff recommends that the GSAs provide more information on
the proposed projects and management actions, identify funding, identify water
sources (where appropriate), and develop specific plans and timelines for
implementation.

Projects Reliant on New or Amended Water Rights

13. Implementing some of the projects identified in the GSP may require new or
amended water rights. If a project would rely on existing water rights, the GSAs
should identify the water right identification numbers and other relevant details. It
may be unreasonable for the GSP to assume that projects that currently lack
adequate water rights for implementation can obtain either new water rights or
modifications to existing water rights within a timeframe that will allow the project to
contribute to the GSP achieving sustainability. For the GSP to demonstrate a
likelihood of attaining the sustainability goal, the GSP should discuss the timing for
obtaining approvals and describe any uncertainties, such as water availability in
source streams (e.g., Will less surface water be available with projected Bay-Delta
Plan implementation? Is the source on the inventory of fully appropriated streams?
Can potential protests be anticipated from downstream water users?).

Here, for example, the GSP recognizes that surface water availability will decrease
as GSAs in upstream subbasins implement their own GSPs. Some of the sources of
water proposed in the GSP are “fully appropriated” for some of the year (e.g., Poso
Creek) or year-round (e.g., Kings River, Tule River, Kaweah River, and Kern River),
meaning those sources have insufficient supply for new water right applications. For
projects reliant on new water rights on fully appropriated streams, the GSP should
explain how the fully appropriated designation affects project timelines and
feasibility.

a) New surface water right permits: An applicant must gather all information
necessary to complete the application, which could be extensive. Once the
application is publicly noticed, other water right holders may protest the project
based on potential injury to their water rights. Parties may also protest if the
project has the potential to harm public trust resources. The GSAs should



Craig Altare -9- August 23, 2021

14.

contact the Division of Water Rights’ Permitting and Licensing Division or
consult the Division’s Permitting and Licensing Frequently Asked Questions
(https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterrights/water_issues/programs/application
s/fags.html) to develop an informed timeline for project implementation that
includes necessary water right actions.

b) Amendment of an existing surface water right: The time required to amend an
existing water right depends on multiple factors, including but not limited to
whether the change is minor, major, or controversial. The GSAs can learn more
from the Division of Water Rights’ Petitions Frequently Asked Questions
(https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterrights/water issues/programs/petitions/f

ags.html).

Given there is no certainty that a particular water right permit or petition will
ultimately be approved, or when, it is important the GSP clarify proposed timelines
for projects and management actions and consider how changes in those timelines
could impact the subbasin’s ability to achieve sustainability by 2040. The GSP
should also identify alternative groundwater management strategies to achieve
sustainability (e.g., demand reduction), if anticipated water supplies such as
purchases or new or amended water rights are unsuccessful. This would ensure the
GSAs can effectively evaluate when they should move towards implementing such
contingency projects or management actions if primary projects or management
actions are not implemented on projected timelines. To this end, the GSP should
aiso identify well-developed demand management options with clearly defined
triggers in the event that proposed supply augmentation volumes are not fully
achieved.

Engagement

15.

16.

The GSAs should engage with all public water systems which rely on groundwater
in the subbasin to ensure the GSP protects drinking water users. To facilitate this,
State Water Board staff has attached a list of public water systems with wells in the
subbasin as of August, 2021. Please contact the Board’s Division of Drinking Water
at DDW-SAFER-NAU@waterboards.ca.gov with any questions.

The GSP should be more explicit about how the concerns of local beneficial users,
particularly disadvantaged communities reliant on groundwater, and other
stakeholders were integrated into development of SMC and monitoring networks
and selection of RMS and projects and management actions. SGMA requires
consideration of the interests of diverse social, cultural, and economic elements of
the populations within the subbasin during GSP development. Collaborative and
inclusive processes can make GSPs more resilient by increasing buy-in and trust,



Craig Altare -10 - August 23, 2021

17.

18.

improving compliance, and enhancing the quality of information on which GSPs are
based. It is important that GSAs send appropriate notices; hold meetings in times,
places, and manners that support effective engagement; and acknowledge issues
raised. GSAs should consult with individuals or groups when actions may impose
direct or indirect costs on those entities. Good governance can build trust and
reduce regulatory compliance risks. Consultation, for example, could help a GSA
avoid or mitigate an action that might directly or indirectly cause a drinking water
system to violate its permit or face new compliance costs due to reduced availability
of water or lower water quality.

The Santa Rosa Rancheria of the Tachi-Yokut Tribe, which the GSP lists as the
only California Native American Tribe located within the subbasin, relies primarily on
groundwater to supply water for approximately 700 residents. According to Table 6-
5 (Projects and Management Actions), development of groundwater allocations
“may take into consideration” Native American Tribes. As the Tachi-Yokut Tribe is
federally recognized, the GSP should also state that federally reserved groundwater
rights shall be respected in full in the GSAs’ management of the subbasin.

State Water Board staff appreciate that the Communication and Engagement Plan
(C&E Plan) indicates that the GSAs sent a Sacred Lands File & Native American
Contacts List Request to the Native American Heritage Commission. The South
Fork Kings GSA (SFKGSA) sent a letter to the Tachi-Yokut Tribe. The Tribe’s EPA
director attended an SFKGSA meeting and is included on an interested parties list.
According to the C&E Plan, the letter from the SFKGSA to the Tribe should be
included with the C&E Plan, but the letter appears to be missing from the GSP. Staff
recommend the letter be added to the C&E Plan for transparency. Also, the C&E
Plan should clarify whether the Native American Heritage Commission request
included the entire subbasin or just a subset of the GSAs. Finally, the GSAs should
continue to engage the tribes, particularly at key milestones of the implementation
process.

In conclusion, State Water Board staff is concerned that the GSP allows for continued
groundwater overdraft without any plan to mitigate potential impacts to domestic wells
or drinking water systems. Potential issues associated with groundwater quality,
subsidence, and interconnected surface water are not adequality analyzed. The
proposed projects and management actions, as described in the GSP, do not appear to
achieve long-term sustainability based on the model results presented. The feasibility of
the GSP is uncertain because the GSP does not describe specific projects or
management actions and thus lacks sufficient information regarding how the projects
and management actions will be implemented.



Craig Altare -11- August 23, 2021

If you any have questions regarding these comments, please do not hesitate to contact
State Water Board Groundwater Management Program staff by email
at SGMA@waterboards.ca.gov or by phone at 916-322-6508.

Sincerely,

Natalie Stork

Senior Engineering Geologist

Chief, Groundwater Management Program
Office of Research, Planning, and Performance

Enclosures: Appendix — Select constituents in Tulare Lake Subbasin wells

Public water systems with wells in the Tulare Lake Subbasin as of August,
2021 (see .xIsx attachment within PDF file)



Craig Altare -12 - August 23, 2021
Appendix — Select constituents in Tulare Lake Subbasin wells

Non-detects are green, detections are yellow and orange, and MCL exceedances are
red. Figures developed from State Water Board Groundwater Ambient Monitoring and
Assessment (GAMA) Program’s database
(https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/)

Eelected 809 Arzs:
* BAM JOAQUIN VALLEY - TULARE LAKE (5.022 123
Chenosk

| Geariam - (MIGL 720 pGiL) Y
7O $HOW:
| A Resuhs o 2]
TRARAME:
TAliveus WY
Wall Cotegory: i anwctn oarases f
B Domeste munopst Shg
B iregatien s vl B water Suppiy, Other ! A WELL-
Nenicrmg 31 - - — + 2WELL CLUBTER - s,

W WELL -

Figure 1. Uranium in Tulare Lake Subbasin wells



Craig Altare -13 - August 23, 2021

& GAMA Greundwater X o+ - o x

« C &
GAMA%
GROUNDWAT

o

Sebicted 6 Aras.
© SAR JCAQURN VALLEY - TULARE LEKE 5022 12)

Ciorcat:

REBATA TO SHOW:

Al Resuits T

TULETRAME:

Ai¥esrs v}

Wehl Catogory: @ o &

B nomesic B Municipal d 1 |

W irigatcn / dusal o |

Ciwmonitonng 3 = g

o —= = . wo o b ] o -,. |
[Rewaay| : QIS L X GiEE i B0 Bl

AT T

Figure 2. Gross Alpha Radioactivity in Tulare Lake Subbasin wells



